



Matrix VI User Manual

Copyright ©GUANGZHOU ALPHA GEO-INFO CO., LTD

*All Rights Reserved

<u>α-GE</u>

Contents

Chapter Summary	
1.1 Summary	
1.2 Product features	
1.3 Precautions	5
Chapter Hardware Operation	7
2.1 Device components	7
2.2 Accessories	
2.2.1 Carrying case	
2.2.2 Lemo interface (5-pin)	
2.2.3 Type-C Cable	
2.2.4 Internal UHF antenna	
2.2.5 SIM Card Installation	
Chapter III Internal Web UI introduction	
3.1 Web UI login	
3.2 Configuring the device as a Base	
3.2.1 Transmitting via Internal UHF	
3.2.2 Transmitting via Network	
3.2.3 NTRIP Caster	
3.3 Configuring the device as a Rover	
3.3.1 Standard Rover settings	
3.3.2 Data link in Rover mode	
3.4 NTRIP and TCP/IP configuration	
3.4.1 NTRIP Server	21
3.4.2 NTRIP Client	
3.4.3 TCP/IP	23

<u>α-GE</u>

3.4.4 Data Stream	23
Chapter IV Operations	28
4.1 Laser Measurement	28
4.2 AR Stakeout	32
4.3 Photographic Survey	34
Chapter V Warranty and Safety Notices	
5.1 Warranty and Limited Liability	
5.2 Safety Notices	
5.3 Recycling	

Chapter I Summary

1.1 Summary

In recent years, the α -GEO company has been committed to making field measurement easier and easier. According to the engineering experience accumulated in the past 30 years and the experience in the research and development of Surveying and mapping related instruments, I am familiar with the current situation and development direction of Surveying and mapping products, and can organically introduce other disciplines and technologies into the field of surveying instruments.

MATRIX VI is a high-end intelligent GNSS receiver launched by α -GEO, which is a compact new generation of Visual RTK designed for any surveying project using the latest GNSS technology. It adopts multi-satellite and multi-frequency technology, with built-in all constellation motherboard, supports BeiDou3 satellite, with advanced IMU technology, and Linux operating system runs more stably and smoothly. The operation mode is simple and flexible, in terms of function, performance, speed and power consumption Meet the higher requirements of users.

1.2 Product features

Good design, advanced algorithm, smart interaction, and equipped with an efficient Linux platform; The miniaturized zero phase antenna adopts multi-satellite and multifrequency GNSS main board, supports multiple satellite system signals of BDS, GPS, GLONASS and Galileo, with good electromagnetic shielding and stable receiving satellite signals; When the stakeout points are marked directly on the ground, surveyors can easily find the exact location of the stakeout points. By following the arrows on the real-life map, you can stake out points in one go, without having to move the pole back and forth, making the stakeout work more accurate and efficient;

The world's exclusive patented laser measurement quick calibration technology can easily achieve centimeter-level measurement accuracy, making measurement more accurate and user-friendly. Besides the camera used in the equipment overcomes the difficulty of aiming under sunlight, making field measurement operations faster and more efficient;

The built-in high-performance 9-axis IMU module eliminates the need for users to perform complicated calibration. The maximum inclination angle can reach 120 degrees, and the accuracy can be maintained within 2cm. What you reach is what you measure, no more waiting;

Provide rich data link mode, with Wi-Fi and 4G Internet access function to transmit differential data; when using network to transmit differential data, the Rover receiver of other manufacturers can connect to the reference station established by the measurement receiver, and the measurement Rover can also connect to the CORS reference station of other companies;

1.3 Precautions

MATRIX VI is a precision instrument. Although it is designed to resist chemical corrosion and earthquake, it should be used and maintained carefully in actual use.

1. Packing and transportation: please make sure that the receiver and all accessories are

placed in the instrument box in the correct position to prevent the instrument from being damaged by impact and vibration during transportation. Please dry the instrument surface with a cloth when it is wet by rain, and then pack it after it is dried. The receiver and data collector are equipped with built-in lithium battery. Please ensure to comply with the national laws and regulations during express transportation.

2. Storage: when using and storing the receiver, please make sure it is within the specified temperature range. Before storage, take out the lithium battery from the host and turn off the manual. After using the instrument at ordinary times, it shall be packed in time to prevent the loss of accessories.

3. Please do not disassemble the instrument when using the GNSS receiver. In case of failure, please contact the supplier;

4. Please use the original battery charger. When using an external power supply, you must ensure that the nominal voltage is correct.

5. Do not use receiver and pole in thunderstorm days to prevent accidental injury caused by lightning stroke.

6. In order to ensure the quality of the satellite observation signal, the sky over the station should be as wide as possible, and there should be no obstacles above the altitude angle of 15 degrees. High voltage line, microwave station, TV Tower and other strong electromagnetic interference equipment shall be avoided within 200m around the station. In order to reduce the influence of multipath effect on the observation, the station should be far away from large water areas, glass curtain walls of high-rise buildings and other areas with strong electromagnetic wave reflection.



Chapter II Hardware Operation

2.1 Device components



Button/Indicators	Remark	Descriptions
	Power button	Pressing to power on/off receiver
\bigcirc	Power indicator	Indicates power-on status and battery status
\Rightarrow	Bluetooth	Indicates Bluetooth connection status
	Satellite	Indicates satellites locked/tracking status
<u>l</u>	Data	Indicates data communication status









Components	Descriptions
UHF antenna interface	Built-in radio antenna interface,
	the antenna must be mounted to use the built-in radio
	External power supply;
5-pin LEMO interface	Serial cable connection control;
	External radio data transmission
Sim card slot	Install a nano SIM card for device internet datalink communication
Reset key	For reset the device when some unexpected issue happens
Type-C USB interface	Charge the device and download the data
Speaker	Working mode and status voice prompted
AR Camera	For live scene stake out



<u>α-GE</u>

2.2 Accessories

2.2.1 Carrying case

If there is water on the surface of the instrument or inside the box, please do not directly pack the box, and then cover it tightly after drying. If the inside of the box is wet and the field is eager to transport it, it should be opened and dried in time when returning to the room.



2.2.2 Lemo interface (5-pin)



Note: The 5-pin interface are all arranged in a counterclockwise direction when looking at the front (that is, facing the front side of the notch of the 5-pin interface of the receiver)

(1) Three uses of the 5-pin interface:

1. When the interface is connected to the computer, it is used to connect the PC control software of the test;

2. When the interface is connected to the external radio, the data cable is used for the receiver and the external radio communication;

3. When the interface is connected to the adapter, it can supply power to the receiver.

(2) Signal description

1	Power(12V)		
2	Signal (Ground)		
3	RXD		
4	TXD		
5	Power (Ground)		

Note: When connecting the 5-pin interface, make sure that the red mark of the 5-pin head is aligned with the red point on the small 5-pin interface, and then it can be inserted gently. If it is not aligned, it cannot be inserted to protect the 5-pin interface.

2.2.3 Type-C Cable

The USB interface is located on the side of the receiver. Open the rubber plug on the side of the receiver to see the interface. The Micro USB interface of the receiver is used



as follows:

(1) Connect the charger via the Type-C USB cable and charge the device;



Type-C USB cable

For Type-C cable, one end is a standard USB interface, and the other end is a Type-C USB interface, which is mainly used for data transmission between computer and receivers and charging.

2.2.4 Internal UHF antenna

The receiver is equipped with a UHF built-in radio antenna, the specific use is as follows: (1) In any case where the built-in radio is used as a data link, whether it is a dualtransmission mode or a radio repeater mode, the UHF built-in radio antenna must be inserted.

(2) The receiver integrates a 4G built-in antenna, and users do not need to plug in a 4G antenna.





Internal UHF antenna

When using the built-in radio as the data link, the radio communication protocol and radio frequency can be set on the data collector.

2.2.5 SIM Card Installation

When using the built-in network communication, a mobile phone card needs to be inserted, and the receiver supports Nano-SIM card. SIM card installation method: Open the battery cover, as shown in following figure, insert the SIM card notch into the card slot with the chip facing down. When removing, just press the SIM card to automatically eject part of it, then pull out the card.

Tip: The receiver has a built-in 4G antenna, and no external antenna is required when using the built-in network communication.



α-GEO

Chapter III Internal Web UI introduction

3.1 Web UI login

MATRIX VI can be fully configured and monitored by using the WEB UI. Any Wi-Fi device can connect to MATRIX VI via the WEB UI. The steps how to connect to Wi-Fi is as below.

- 1. Wait till MATRIX VI has fully booted after switching on (about 10 seconds).
- 2. The wireless access point name will be shown up which is same as the serial number

as shown in following figures. The password is 12345678.



3. Run a browser and type the IP 192.168.10.1 in the address bar, if requires username and password, type "admin" for both username and password. The browser will open the 'Overview' page of the Web Interface as shown in Figure 3-2. Basic information of receiver will be display in this interface, including receiver SN, firmware version, position information, etc.



▼ Ø T33R4C116903230 × +								- o ×
← → C ▲ Not secure 192.168.10.1/#/frameStat	tus					☆	۵	Relaunch to update
	Device	Position		Status		English V		
NATIVE M	SN : T33R4C116903230	Longitude : 113.4284621/	1572	HDOP : 0.5	🍐 Remain 121414.02M	🔾 Diff 3.0		
0	Firmware : V2_0_12-D-20240927	Latitude : 23.175788618?	.3	Working Mode : Rover Mode	🔊 Fixed	38 15:37:45		
	Web Ver : 20240918_v1	Height : 49.2903		Expiry : 20250407		- 		
	Status Work Mode 🗡	GNSS Information $^{\!$	NetWork Setting	g \checkmark Data Communication \checkmark	System Setting			
Network Info			Devir	ce Info		Refresh		
			OFM					
٩	Server Port: 8 Mount Userna	IP: 1.14.194.9 D06 : Point: T03V32000204583 arme: b:	IMEI: 8 ICCID: IMSI: - MODI SIGN/ REG: - SIM: 1 SOFT ERRC	UM980 IG151067871699 +CME ERROR: 10 EL: SC-A76XX 4L:28 11 Not inserted WARE: SC_A76XX-V1_0_0-240811 IR:				
power Info	Re	:main88%Electric	disk Si	used 0% used 48.78 M Remain 12136/	:5.25 M			

3.2 Configuring the device as a Base

The MATRIX VI is able to be set as Base, and can be started as internal UHF, Network,

Ntrip Caster. Check the Base in work mode field, as shown in following figure.

	Device		Position	Status		English \vee
MATERX VI	SN : T33R4C116914476	Longitude : "	113.4284729277	HDOP : 0.7	💧 Remain 121413.02M	🔾 Diff
0	Firmware : V2_0_12-D-20240927	Latitude : 23	.1757894338	Working Mode : Rover Mode	Il Autonomous	 28 13:50:22
	Web Ver : 20240918_v1	Height : 42.5	5310	Expiry : 20250310		-
	Status Work Mode ^	GNSS Informat	tion \checkmark NetWork Setting	g 🎽 Data Communication 🎽	System Setting	
	Base					
	Rover		Base			
	Static	ecora каw Data	Disable	~		
		StartUp Mode	Single Point Auto Start	\sim		
	1	Message Format	RTCM30	~		
		Mask Angle	10			
	Trans	smitting Interval	1	\checkmark		
		PDOP Limit	3.0000			
			Set Base			

3.2.1 Transmitting via Internal UHF

- 1. Mount the UHF antenna to the MATRIX VI for transmitting the signal.
- 2. Select the Base work mode field, set the coordinate, antenna height, the differential

message type, PDOP and mask angle, as shown in following figure.

	Base
Record Raw Data	Disable ~
StartUp Mode	Single Point Auto Start \vee
Message Format	RTCM30 V
Mask Angle	10
Transmitting Interval	1 ~
PDOP Limit	3.0000
	Cat Rass
	Set Base

3. Select the Built-in Radio in Datalink field, set the required radio protocol, channel,

frequency and power level, as shown in following figure.

DataLink Set Internal Radio	
Radio Protocol	ALPHATALK15 V
Radio Channel	Channel2 V
Power	HIGH V
Radio Frequency	Channel1 450.125 Channel2 451.125 Channel3 452.125
	Expand All Channels~
	Set

3.2.2 Transmitting via Network

1. Insert a sim card into the device and configure the APN parameters in Network Setting field \rightarrow Mobile Config to activate it, as shown in following figure.



	Status	Work Mode $^{\vee}$	GNSS Information $^{}$	NetWork Setting $~~$	Data Communication $^{\vee}$	System Setting
				Mobile Config		
Parameter Setting						
		APN Name	CMNET			
		APN Use	r TaiXuan			
		APN Password	TaiXuan			
				Set		

2. Select the "Built-in Network" in Datalink field, and enter the Ntrip Server parameters in the corresponding filed. You will need to provide a name of the mountpoint in Access Point filed, as shown in following figure.

DataLink Set Built-In Network \lor							
Tip : Please go to <ntrip caster=""> and <ntrip server=""> under menu <data communication=""> to set data link</data></ntrip></ntrip>							
Status Work Mode $^{ imes}$ GNSS Ir	nformation $^{\checkmark}$ NetWork Setting $^{\vee}$	Data Communication $~~$	System Setting				
	Ntrip Server						
Status	Enable						
Server IP	1.14.194.9						
Port	8006						
Username	tx						
Password	tx						
Mount Point	T03V32000204583						
Set							

3.2.3 NTRIP Caster

The NTRIP Caster is a HTTP server which receives streaming RTCM data from one or more NTRIP Servers and in turn streams the RTCM data to one or more NTRIP Clients via the internet. MATRIX VI is equipped with Wi-Fi module, so it can be a server and perform as Ntrip Caster to transmit the RTCM data, which is a very good feature for



drone's application.

Base Configuration

- 1. Set the Base start parameters as usual, and select the external radio as datalink method.
- 2. Select the NTRIP Caster in Data Communication field as shown in following figure.
- 3. Set the port number and the mountpoint name as shown in following figure.

Status Work Mode $ imes$ GNSS	Information $^{\!$	Data Communication ^	System Setting
		File	
	Ntrip Caster	Socket	
Status	Enable	Ntrip Client	
		Ntrip Server	
Port	8000	Ntrip Caster	
Mount Point	T10R2A116000001	NMEA Config	
		Serial Port Config	
	Set		
		Webbocket	
	Ntrip Caster		
Status	Enable		
Port	8000		
Mount Point	0001_T_RTCM32		
	Set		

Rover Configuration

1. Connect data collector or Drone's controller to MATRIX VI's Wi-Fi hotspot without entering any password, as shown in following figure.



WLAN	
Network acceleration	On >
More settings	>
CONNECTED TO WLAN	
T33R4C116914476 Connected (no Internet access)	((ī:
AVAILABLE NETWORKS	
Alphageo_5G Saved, encrypted (available)	
Alphageo Encrypted	

Run the controller software and go to the Ntrip Configuration menu, enter the IP 192.168.10.1 and port (e.g., 8000) as set in Base configuration. The mountpoint (e.g., 0001_T_RTCM32) will be shown in the list, as below following figure.

← Rover №	1ode Setting:	5							
General Para	meters								
Cut-Off Angle Disable PPK	:10 Diff Dela	iy:30							
Datalink Sett	Datalink Settings								
Datalink		Phone Internet >							
Connecting M IP:192.168.10. User:drone	ode:NTRIP 1 Server P Passwor	ort:8000 d:*****							
Mountpoint S	Settings	Get							
Mountpoint	00	001_T_RTCM32 >							
RX Data Stat	us								
\bigcirc		Stop							
Auto Connect to Network									
Base Coordina excluded)	tes Change Ale	rt(VRS							
Share	Save	Apply							

<u>α-GE</u>

3.3 Configuring the device as a Rover

3.3.1 Standard Rover settings

For the MATRIX VI to operate as a rover and accept differential correction data from a Base station, check that Rover is selected in the "Work Mode" field as shown in following figure. This is the default operating mode of the MATRIX VI.

Status Work Mode 🔷 G	ISS Information $^{\vee}$ NetWork Setting	$^{\vee}$ Data Communication $^{\vee}$	System Setting
Base			
Rover	Rover		
Static Record Raw T	ata Disable V		
Mask A	gle 10		
Diff Age	fax 10		
	Set Rover		

Note: When the "record raw data" is checked, the receiver will record raw data in Rover

mode.

3.3.2 Data link in Rover mode

Built-in Radio

Configure the radio parameters as same as Base as shown in Figure 3-3-2-1. And the

radio antenna must be inserted when using internal radio.

DataLink Set Internal Radio							
Radio Protocol	ALPHATAI	_K15	~				
Radio Channel	Channel2		~				
Radio Frequency	Channel1	450.125	Channel2	451.125	Channel3	452.125	
		Expar	nd All Channe	ls∨			
Set							



Built-in Network

When built-in network is selected, a NANO SIM card must be inserted to the MATRIX VI to get the 4G signal. At the same time the APN parameters would be set in "Network Settings" field \rightarrow Cellular menu. After that, the CORS details will be set as following

figure.

DataLink Set Built-in Network	
Status	Enable
Ntrip Mode	Ntrip
IP	1.14.194.9
Port	8006
Username	tx
Password	tx
Mount Point	T03V32000204583 × Get
APN Name	CMNET
APN Username	TaiXuan
APN Password	TaiXuan
	Set

3.4 NTRIP and TCP/IP configuration

3.4.1 NTRIP Server

An NTRIP server is a broadcast Internet server that manages authentication and password control for differential correction sources such as VRS networks, and relays corrections from the source that you select. NTRIP is the acronym for Networked Transport of RTCM via Internet Protocol which is fully supported by the MATRIX VI receiver, as shown in following figure. The settings are as below:

1. Make sure you have a cellular connection as described in the previous section.

2. Select the corresponding NTRIP version and fill the NTRIP Sever details in the corresponding box. The username and password can be any letters, and the mount point name needs to be set in "Access point" field.

Status Work Mode ee GNSS Ir	nformation $^{\!$	Data Communication ^	System Setting
		File	
	Ntrip Server	Socket	
Status	Enable	Ntrip Client	
Status		Ntrip Server	
Server IP	1.14.194.9	Ntrip Caster	
Port	8006	NMEA Config	
		Serial Port Config	
Username	tx	System Log	
Password	tx	WebSocket	
Mount Point	T03V32000204583		
	Set		

3.4.2 NTRIP Client

An NTRIP Client is the software element used by the rover (the GNSS devices out in the field) used to connect to an NTRIP Caster such as SurPro6.0 to gain access to the data stream with the positional corrections it needs. There are also two methods to get the correction data, one is via internal network of receiver and the other is via data collector internet. But there is only internal network available when configuring it in WEB UI. You can find the related settings in "Data Communication" field NTRIP Client, as shown in following figure.

1. Make sure you have a cellular connection as described in the previous section.

2. Input the CORS details in the corresponding box. The username and password must be correct, and the mount point list can be updated in "Access point" field.



Status Work Mode $ imes$ GNSS	Information $^{\!$	Data Communication 个	System Setting
		File	
	Ntrip Client	Socket	
Status	Enable	Ntrip Client	
Status		Ntrip Server	
Server IP	1.14.194.9	Ntrip Caster	
Port	8006	NMEA Config	
		Serial Port Config	
Username	tx	System Log	
Password	tx	WebSocket	
Mount Point	T03V32000204583		
	Set		

3.4.3 TCP/IP

The MATRIX VI can be set as a reference station to broadcast the raw data/differential data to the specified server. There are 5 channels supported which allows to send data to 5 servers at the same with different data format, as shown in below following figure. When the server is connected to MATRIX VI, the "Status" button will become green and that means it is connected successfully.

			Status	Work Mode $^{\vee}$	GNSS Information $$	NetWork Setting ${}^{}$	Data Communication $~~$	System Setting	
						SOCKET			
CH01	Mode	Select	~ D	Select V	Server IP	Server Pc	ort	Local Port	Set
CH02	Mode	Select	~ D	Select V	Server IP	Server Pc	ort	Local Port	Set
CH03	Mode	Select	~ D	ata Select V	Server IP	Server Pc	ort	Local Port	Set
CH04	Mode	Select		Select V	Server IP	Server Pc	ort	Local Port	Set
CH05	Mode	Select	~ D	Bidirectional ~	Server IP	Server Pc	ort	Local Port	Set

3.4.4 Data Stream

NMEA output

Select the NMEA Config in "Data Communication" field, here allows to define the



NMEA message outputs, as shown in following figure.

		Status \	Work Mode $^{\vee}$	GNSS Information $~~$	NetWork Setting	Data Communication Y	System Settin	g
				1	NMEA Config			
GGA	1 Hz	\sim	RMC	OFF	∨ VTG	OFF	ZDA	1 Hz V
GSA	1 Hz	~	GST	1 Hz	∽ GSV	5 s ~	NAVI	5 Hz ~
					Set			

Debug

This windows provides a debug function which you can send the commands to check the receiver's working status. And the NMEA data stream can be shown here as the following figure.

	I	Device	Positio	on		Status		English 🗸
	SN : T33R4C11	6914476	Longitude : 113.4284	729020	HDOF	P:0.7	💧 Remain 121413.02M	🔾 Diff
AATRIX VI	Firmware : V2_0		Latitude : 23.1758304	700	Working Mode : Rover Mode		Autonomous	28
	Web Ver : 2024	0918_v1	Height : 42.0704		Expiry	: 20250310	of Internal Radio	0 16:42:27
	Status	Work Mode $^{\scriptstyle \lor}$	GNSS Information $^{\!$	NetWork Setting	g ~	Data Communication ^	System Setting	
				WebSocket		File		
					_	Socket		
WebSocket								
					- 1	Ntrip Client		
\$PTAX VISION 666D6	596395AF5111192	53375A93FA55120F1	462DD0CBE2AA962ED1A	F0A6B5AA8D82F0	CA8C9	Ntrip Server		
\$PTAX,VISION,666D6	59639FAE5111739	F099CA33EA551FAE1	482D873FDBAA52D2D1A	E09CF8AA6774F72	2A8386	Ntrip Caster		
\$PTAX, VISION, 666D6	5963A9AE5111A14	D1CA7953EA551D7	5F722DCCD012AAE335D1	AE85F7BE284B2C7	7A2866			
\$PTAX,VISION,666D6	5963B3AE5111936	B12CE8F3EA551C96	E4A2DB9FB09AAA90ED1A	E0D09542B9D6A7	B28F9E	NMEA Config		
\$PTAX,VISION,666D6	5963BDAE5111D13	3C6819803EA551038	17F2D7663C0AA9E02D1A	E8E06542B9AFA7	A284CE	Serial Port Config		
\$PTAX,VISION,666D6	5963C7AE5111439	17E20FA3EA5518D4	9492D206DDCAAF7D9D1	AE828511A875270)F28C0/	System Log		
\$PTAX,VISION,666D6	5963D1AE51113D4	17754BEC3EA551D44	27F2DB46BF4AA15DED1	AEBAF082286EE07	B285C1	System Log		
\$PTAX,VISION,666D6	5963DBAE51114B1	64B92E63EA551C81	4462DEE36C7AA7D23D1A	E72C259A901162	8ABBD	WebSocket		
\$PTAX,VISION,666D6	5963E5AE5111092	141BDD83EA551E04	24F2D9ACDCEAA7B2FD1	AEC15BF2A9BC0F9	227D81	652AA93136564*02		
\$PTAX, VISION, 666D6	5963EFAE5111CFF	-57C4D23EA551CB4	5452DE2F3D2AA87D0D1A	E903283A88B0780	CA83960	174AB0156564*3E		
	5963F9AE5111694	DAAECC43EA331F4F	D422D5157DBAA4207DTA	LES 19 1F4299D0E93	0A094FF	17AA30140304"09		
\$PTAX, VISION, 666D6	59630DAF5111612	0B65E333EA5516EE2	742DCD62C4AAB80FD1A	F4226B3A60A1CD	848006	677AA4C126564*73		
\$PTAX.VISION.666D6	596317AF511177F	48C69293FA5510F14	4E2DF483DDAAC127D1A	E54D5FD290CC83	C29521E	377AA9E116564*16		
\$PTAX,VISION,666D6	596321AF5111415	383B01F3FA5519C8F	7B2D77D522AA13D4D1A	EFA685AA876A00	FA89417	13AAD6116564*86		
\$PTAX,VISION,666D6	59632BAF511117E	098DB153FA5510B8I	D752D9A3EDBAA4529D1	AEC48685A6F0811	EA90316	54EAAD1116564*7C		
\$PTAX,VISION,666D6	596335AF5111E51	EEFE20B3FA5512BF4	742DC7CAC6AA9A36D1A	E541B2BA8E68487	7A9569B	44AAC4136564*64		
\$INS.NAVI,084227.80	0,23.1758304383,1	13.4284728172,42.06	564,-0.003,0.005,-0.003,-0.	0021,-0.0006,9.999	99,-1.000	0,0.0000000,0.0000000,0.0	00000	Ψ.
4								*
								le
submit								

File Manage

MATRIX VI allows to download the static data via WEB UI which is very convenient to share the data in the field. When the static data is stored, the data list will be shown in this page as following figure. Users can download the data by clicking it.

	Device	Position	S	Status	English 🗸
	SN : T33R4C116914476	Longitude : 113.4284607162	HDOP : 0.7	💧 Remain 1.	21413.02M 🔾 Diff
07	Firmware : V2_0_12-D-20240927	Latitude : 23.1758304407	Working Mode : F	Rover Mode	ous 🔀 28
	Web Ver : 20240918_v1	Height : 39.8331	Expiry : 2025031	0	
	Status Work Mode $^{\vee}$	GNSS Information V NetWork Settin	g 🎽 🛛 Data Con	mmunication System Setting	
		File	File		
			Socket		
Current Path : /sdcar	rd/		Ntrip Clien	nt	
Name			Ntrip Serve	er	Oranting
Name			Ntrip Caste	er	Operation
202501	106		NMEA Con	Jan 6 10:59	Delete
Delete			Serial Port	Config	
			System Log	g	
			WebSocke	t	

System Setting

MATRIX VI provides some system settings, such as factory reset, restart, OEM reset, update and register, as shown in following figure. If there is system error, the factory reset may fix the problem.

For registration, we provide two different ways, to register in WEB UI or in field software. You can choose the most convenient way to register the code.



Status Work	Mode $^{\vee}$ GNSS Information	n $^{\!$	Data Communication $^{\!$	System Setting			
		SystemSetting					
	Shutdown	Register	FunctionRegister				
	Time Zone	Voice Broadcast					
		SystemUpgrade					
	Upgrade Firmware	Upgrade IMU	Upgrade OEM				
Power							
Auto Boot Disable <							
Set							

Upgrade firmware

Firmware upgrading can be completed on WEB UI as above figure shows. It takes some minutes to complete the procedure, and it will auto restart once it is done.

SN: T3SR4C116914478 Longitude: 113.4284889575 HDOP : 0.6 Remain 121472.42M 0. Mf Firmware: V2_0_12.D-202040927 Latitude: 23.1759079905 Working Mode: Rover Mode Iteranal Radio Ites3.24 Web Wer: Upgrade Firmware V Ites3.24 Ites3.24 Web Wer: Upgrade Firmware V Ites3.24 Web Wer: Upgrade Firmware V Firmware: V2_0_12-D-20240927 Veb Wer: Veb Wer: Web Wer: Upgrade Firmware V Firmware: V2_0_12-D-20240927 Veb Wer: Web Wer: Upgrade Firmware Veb Wer: Veb Wer: Veb Wer: Upgrade Firmware Veb Wer: Veb Wer: Veb Wer: Veb Wer: Veb Wer: Vegrade Firmware Vegrade Firmware Vegrade Firmware Vegrade Firmware Vegrade Vegrade Vegrade Veb Wer: Vegrade Firmware Vegrade Firmware Vegrade Vegrade Vegrade Vegrade Firmware Vegrade V	SN: T33R4C116014472 Longitude: 113.4284485975 HDOP: 0.6 Remain 121412,42M Drff Firmware: V2_0_112.D-20240927 Latitude: 23.1756979695 Working Mode:: Rover Mode Internal Radio It is 53.24 Web Ver: 3240918_v1 Software:: SC, A760X V1_0_0-240811 Firmware:: SC, A760X V1_0_0-240811 Firmware:: Compade Firmware Veb Ver: 3240918_v1 Software:: SC, A760X V1_0_0-240811 Firmware:: SC, A760X V1_0_0-240811 Firmware:: Compade Firmware Veb Ver: 3240918_v1 Software:: SC, A760X V1_0_0-240811 Firmware:: Compade Firmware Veb Ver: 3240918_v1 Software:: SC, A760X V1_0_0-240811 Firmware:: Compade Firmware Veb Ver: 3240918_v1 Software:: SC, A760X V1_0_0-240811 Firmware:: Compade Firmware Veb Ver: 3240918_v1 Upgrade Firmware Veb Ver: 3240918_v1 Software:: SC, A760X V1_0_0-240811 Firmware:: Compade Firmware Veb Ver: 3240918_v1 Software:: SC, A760X V1_0_0-240811 Firmware:: Veb Ver: 3240918_v1 Upgrade Firmware Veb Ver: 3240918_v1 Veb Ver: 3240918_v1 Veb Ver: 3240918_v1 Upgrade Firmware Veb Ver: 3240918_v1 Upgrade Firmware Veb Ver: 3240918_v1 Veb		Device	Position	Status		English 🗸
Firmware: V2_0_12-D-20240027 Lattude: 23.1756979665 Working Mode: Rover Mode Working Mode: Rover Mode Imarcal Radio © 10:55:24 Web Ver: 2 State Firmware: V2_0_12-D-20240927 Web Ver: 20240918_11 Software: Sci_AF6XX_V1_0_0-240011 Firmware: V2_0_12-D-20240927 Ver: 20240918_11 Software: V2_0_12-D-20240927 Ver: 20240918_11 Ver: 20240918_11 Ver: 20240918_11 V2 Ver: 20240918_11 V2 Ver: 20240918_11 V2 V2 <td>Firmwere: V2_0_12.D-20240027 Working Mode: Rowr Mode Working Mode: Rowr Mode Working Mode: Rowr Mode Ste Immend Radio Immed Radio <td< td=""><th></th><td>SN : T33R4C116914476</td><td>Longitude : 113.4284685975</td><td>HDOP: 0.6</td><td>Remain 121412.42M</td><td>G Diff</td></td<></td>	Firmwere: V2_0_12.D-20240027 Working Mode: Rowr Mode Working Mode: Rowr Mode Working Mode: Rowr Mode Ste Immend Radio Immed Radio <td< td=""><th></th><td>SN : T33R4C116914476</td><td>Longitude : 113.4284685975</td><td>HDOP: 0.6</td><td>Remain 121412.42M</td><td>G Diff</td></td<>		SN : T33R4C116914476	Longitude : 113.4284685975	HDOP: 0.6	Remain 121412.42M	G Diff
Web.Ver: 2 Upgrade Firmware V Firmware: V2,0,12-D-20240927 Web.Ver: 20240918,v1 Software: SC,A766X-V1.0,0-240811 File Selection: Upgrade V File Selection: Upgrade V Upgrade Firmware: Upgrade IAU Upgrade OEM Veb.Ver: Veb.Ver: Veb.Ver: Auto Boot Deable Set	Web Wer 3 Ster Firmware: Firmware: Upgrade Firmware: Upgrade Firmware: Upgrade Firmware: Upgrade Firmware: Upgrade StdU Upgrade OEM	07	Firmware : V2_0_12-D-20240927	Latitude : 23.1756979665	Working Mode : Rover Mode	Autonomous	€ 28 € 16:55:24
Plase Select File: Upgrade Firmware Upgrade MU Upgrade CEM	File Select File Upgrade Fernware Upgrade IMU Power Auto Boot Set		Web Ver : 2 Stat. Firmware : V2_0_12-D-20 Web Ver : 20240918 y1 Software : SC_A76XV-V1	Upgrade Firmwar 0240927 	e	X ting	
Upgrade Frimware Upgrade IAU Upgrade Frimware Upgrade IAU Power Auto Boot Disable Set	Upgrade Firmware Upgrade MU Upgrade OEM		File Selection L Please Select File	Jpgrade			
Upgrade Firmware Upgrade IMU Upgrade OEM Power Auto Boot Disable Bet Set	Upgrade Firmware Upgrade IMU Upgrade CEM Power Auto Boot Disable Set						
Power Auto Boot Disable Set	Upgrade Firmware Upgrade IMU Upgrade GEM Power						
Power Auto Boot Disable Set	Power Auto Boot Disabile Set		Upgrade	Firmware Upgrade IMU	Upgrade OEM		
Auto Boot Disable v Set	Auto Boot Disable v Set			Power			
			Aut	o Boot Disable V			



Upgrade OEM

As well as the OEM board upgrading, choose the 'Upgrade OEM' and it will take around 3minutes to complete. Once it is done, the receiver will automatically restart.

	Device	Position	Status		English 🔗
	SN : T33R4C116914476	Longitude : 113.4284696545	HDOP: 0.6	Remain 121412.42M	Q Diff
07	Firmware : V2_0_12-D-20240927	Latitude : 23,1756959267	Working Mode : Rover Mode	Autonomous	 28 16:55:58
<u> </u>	Web Ver : 2	Linerada OFM			
	Statu	Opgrade OEM		tting	
	OEM : R4.10Build11833				
	Software : SC_A76XX-V1	_0_0-240811			
	File Selection	Ipgrade			
	Please Select File				
	Upgrade	Firmware Upgrade IMU	Upgrade OEM		
		Power			
	Auto	o Boot Disable			

Chapter IV Operations

4.1 Laser Measurement

a) Establish Bluetooth between controller and receiver, then configure the resource

parameters for Matrix VI, as long as it achieves fixed solution, go to next step.



b) Go to "Survey" → "Point Survey" interface, enter correct antenna height, and enable tilt sensor (IMU), there will be a pop-up dialog to ask you to initialize IMU, walk for 3~5 meters or shake receiver to initialize IMU, after the initialization completed, the collection button will turn to green, as shown in the pictures below.





c) Click on the laser button \square to turn on laser, find the laser spot and aim at the target

point, click collection button to save a laser measurement coordinate.

AM10:50 🌣 🖪 HD	*	LTE 🖌 🕯	AM10:50 🌣 🖪 HD	∦ ≑ LTE 🚄 🔒
← 🖥	FIXED H:0.005 Age1 V:0.012	35/42 42%	← 🖥	FIXED H:0.005 💸 🔒
N:2564054.156	H:126.695		N:2564054.321	H:126.702
E:441439.718	Base distar	nce:996.072	E:441439.885	Base distance:996.342
	,Pt29	Z D P P P P P P P P P P P P P P P P P P		,Pt29
🛃 🔯 🗄	1 🖉 📼		🛃 🕸 🗄	1
Name Pt34	S Code Input		Name Pt34	🛇 Code Input
Work Layer:0	> H 1.8+0	.079m >	Work Layer:0	> 🗍 1.8+0.079m >
•	•			•

- α -GE \odot
- d) If the laser spot is not so clear outside sometimes, using the float window with the help of camera. Click icon *at* the right side of interface, while the receiver WiFi is not connected, software will jump to system WiFi setting interface, requires the WiFi connection between controller and receiver, after the WiFi is connected, a pop-up dialog with the reminding message says "This network has no internet access, stay connected?", click "YES" to keep the connection.



e) Return to "Point Survey" interface, click the float window icon again, appears the camera image on the screen, aim at the red cross to a target point and click collection button to save a laser coordinate.





f) If the laser spot is not at the center of cross, go to "Device" menu, and click "Laser Aiming Correction", there will be camera image appears on the screen, align the laser spot to the cross center by the help of arrows or navigation keys.



<u>α-GE</u>

4.2 AR Stakeout

a) Go to "Point Stakeout" in "Survey" menu, choose the coordinate in the stakeout point list, or in the point library, then click the stakeout button to go to stakeout interface, click "AR" button and software will jump to the system WiFi setting and require the WiFi connection between controller and receiver, after the WiFi is connected, a popup dialog with the reminding message says "This network has no internet access, stay connected?", click "YES" to keep the connection. (If the wifi was connected, software will skip this step).

AM10:54 🏟 🖪	HD	* †¶† 🖌 🗎	АМ10:54 🏟 🖪 но		≱ ≑∙¶i≑ ⊿ 🗎	AM10:55 🌣	A. HD	*	†¶‡⊿ 🖬
₽	FIXED H:0.005 Age1 V:0.010 4	★1/42 ↓1/42 ↓2% ⊕	← Stake Po	pint		← Stak	e Point		
	20241225		Point Coordinates	To-Stake-Point	Preview Map	Point Coordinat	es To-Stak	ke-Point Pr	eview Map
2			Name >	Input		Name	> Input		
Point Survey	Detail Survey	Control Point Survey	Pt33 To-Stake N:2564112.480 E:441478.310	Distance Elev:41.7 Code:	69.521m 84	Navigate 1.1 E:4	7 Share	Dis ⁴ 2.6 El Details 72 Coc	60 Stakeout
Photographic	Images	Point Stakeout				Pt33 To-S N:2564112.4 E:441478.31	<mark>Stake</mark> 80 D	Distance:69. Elev:41.784 Code:	517m
Survey	Database	Q				Pt29 N:2564112.4 E:441478.31	61 4	Distance:69. Elev:41.781 Code:	503m
CAD Stakeout	Line Stakeout	DSM Stakeout				Pt22 N:2564112.5 E:441478.30	12 4	Distance:69. Elev:41.875 Code:	540m
Project	Device A Surve	ey Tools	Add Data	base Impor	t Export	Add	Recover	Import	Export
	•			•					





b) Return to stakeout interface, click "AR" button again, the camera image will appear

on interface, go to the target stakeout point following the guide line in real scene.



4.3 Photographic Survey

a) After Matrix VI achieves fixed solution, go to "Photographic Survey" in "Survey" menu, software will jump to the system WiFi setting and require the WiFi connection between controller and receiver, after the WiFi is connected, a pop-up dialog with the reminding message says "This network has no internet access, stay connected?", click "YES" to keep the connection. (If the wifi was connected, software will skip this step).



b) Return to "Survey", click "Photographic Survey" again, the camera image will appear on interface, if there shows "Unavailable" at the bottom right corner of interface, that means the IMU is not initialized yet, at this moment, lift the receiver and walk for 3~5 meters or shake the receiver back and forth (we recommend to walk for 3~5 meters), the status will turn to "Ready", that is to say the IMU initialization completed and ready for the photogrammetry. As shown at the pictures below.





c) Click the white round button at the bottom center of interface to start, at this moment, lift the receiver and move slowly aiming at the target area, the photos will be taken automatically and appear at the top of interface, as well as the taken photos quantity. As shown at the pictures below.





d) In order to ensure good overlap of the measurement area, we need to take at least 5

photos. After taking enough photos, click the stop button to finish the shooting.



e) Click on the photos directly, zoom in on the target feature in the photo, press and hold on the photo for about 1 second, a selection arrow will appear, move the arrow to the target point, when there appears the coordinate, release the arrow, as this moment, we can click "Save" button to save the coordinate into database, or we can continue to obtain the coordinate for the same point in the other photos, with this method, the coordinates obtained in different photos can be averaged.



Matrix VI User Manual









PM04:2	7 🛈 🌣	(<u>)</u> •		🧿 🗱 🕈 📢	41		
÷	Camer	a point					
Name	Pt1		Code	Input	()		
В	23°10'3	2.4356"N	Ν	2564107	.929m		
L	113°25'4	1.2466"E	E	441445	.300m		
н		18.987m	Elev	18	.987m		
NRMS	S	0.024	ERMS		0.021		
HRMS	6	0.032	VRMS		0.022		
Local	Time	2	024-12-	25 16:26:5	53.000		
Task1							
03024	49.20.jpç	J		476.0	,789.0		
03026	54.60.jpç	ļ		642.0	,816.0		
03026	56.20.jpç	9		749.0	,799.0		
	ОК						



PM04:27 🛈 🏟 🛈 🔹		(i) * ÷					
← Camera po	oint						
Name Pt1	Co	de Input	i				
B 23°10'32.43	56"N N	25641	07.929m				
L 113°25'41.24	66"E E	4414	45.300m				
H 18.9	87m Ele	9V	18.987m				
NRMS 0	.024 ER	MS	0.021				
HRMS 0	.032 VF	MS	0.022				
Local Time	2024	I-12-25 16:2	6:53.000				
Task1							
030249.20.jpg		47	6.0,789.0				
030264.60.jpg 642.0,816.0							
030266.20.jpg		74	9.0,799.0				
ОК							
•	•						

Chapter V Warranty and Safety Notices

5.1 Warranty and Limited Liability

The warranty period of our products is 12 months from purchase. If a defective is found due to qualified problems of the products, we perform two commitments: repair and replace.

During the warranty period, if the instrument is damaged due to human factors, it will not be covered by the warranty.

In the event that claims are made against the customer due to product liability, the supplier is obliged to indemnify the customer from such claims if and to the extent that the damage was caused by a defect in the contractual item delivered by the supplier. In cases of fault-based liability, however, this only applies if the supplier is at fault. If the cause of the damage is the responsibility of the supplier, the supplier bears the burden of proof.

5.2 Safety Notices

Compliance is required with respect to voltage, frequency, and current requirements indicated on the manufacturer's label. Connection to a different power source than those specified may result in improper operation, damage to the equipment or pose a fire hazard if the limitations are not followed.

Do not leave your device for charging more than one week. Doing so runs the risk of overcharging the battery and shortening its total life span.

CE Marking

CE marking on this product represents the product is in compliance with all directives that are applicable to it.

RoHS Compliance Statement

European Directive 2002/96/EC requires that the equipment bearing this symbol on the product and/or its packaging must not be disposed of with unsorted municipal waste. The symbol indicates that this product should be disposed of separately from regular household waste streams. It is your responsibility to dispose of this and other electric and electronic equipment via designated collection facilities appointed by the government or local authorities. Correct disposal and recycling will help prevent potential negative consequences to the environment and human health. For more detailed information about the disposal of your old equipment, please contact your local authorities, waste disposal service, or the shop where you purchased the product.

5.3 Recycling

- 1. Do not place the product as household waste.
- 2. According to local regulations for proper disposal of discarded electronic products.
- 3. We actively encourage you to participate in electronics recycling program.